
4 

 

4 

 

BRYAN CITY COUNCIL  
MINUTES OF WORKSHOP MEETING  

JUNE 7, 2016 
 
 
A workshop meeting of the Bryan City Council was held on Tuesday, June 7, 2016, in the Council 
Chambers of the Bryan Municipal Building.  A notice of the meeting was posted at least 72 hours in 
advance in accordance with Section 551, Texas Government Code.  Mayor Jason Bienski and 
Councilmembers Greg Owens, Mike Southerland and Buppy Simank were present.  Councilmember Al 
Saenz joined the meeting at 2:10 p.m.  Councilmembers Rafael Peña and Ben Hardeman were absent.  
City Manager Kean Register, City Attorney Janis Hampton and City Secretary Mary Lynne Stratta were 
in attendance. 
 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER  
 
 The meeting was called to order at 1:09 p.m. 
 
2. PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION BY STAFF REGARDING THE HOUSING INFILL 

NEIGHBORHOOD REVITALIZATION PROGRAM  
 
 Community Development Director Alsie Bond discussed a proposed housing infill neighborhood 

revitalization program.  She advised the program would target the population at 60 to 80 percent of 
median income.  She indicated the staff had met with developers, or another option would be for the 
City to oversee the construction of the homes in house.  She also advised she had submitted a decision 
package in the amount of $600,000 to include potential land acquisition, coordination of construction, 
marketing and sales costs.  She added that once homes were sold, the money would come back to the 
general fund as the funds to build the homes would be considered a loan from the general fund.  
Neighborhood and Youth Outreach Coordinator Bubba Bean added that the City of Burnet served as a 
model for this proposed program.  He advised a tremendous difference in neighborhoods needing 
attention had occurred in Burnet.  He added now these properties were generating tax dollars for the 
city.  Ms. Bond advised she had met with Bryan Independent School District officials about the need 
for affordable housing.  She advised it was anticipated the homes built under this program would be 
in the price range of $130,000 to $160,000.  She provided other statistics about current inventory of 
lots and the number of applications for financial assistance.  Ms. Bond also advised it would be 
preferable if the seed money for this program came from the general fund and was not mingled with 
federal monies.  It was opined the program would eventually pay for itself.   

 
3. PRESENTATION BY STAFF REGARDING OPTIONS FOR FEMA ASSISTANCE FOR 

REPETITIVE FLOOD LOSS PROPERTIES AND STRATEGIES TO ADDRESS FLOODING 
IN CASTLE HEIGHTS AND WILLOW BEND NEIGHBORHOODS WITH COST 
ESTIMATES 

 
 City Engineer Paul Kaspar defined repetitive losses and severe repetitive losses under Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) guidelines.  He also defined what constituted a floodplain.  
Mr. Kaspar reported the City of Bryan had almost five miles of land in the floodplain.  He added the 
City was a member of the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and must adopt and enforce 
NFIP’s rules in order for Bryan citizens to be eligible to purchase flood insurance.  He added the City 
participates in an “above and beyond” rating where residents receive a 20 percent discount on flood 
insurance premiums.  Mr. Kaspar discussed the importance of building homes above the 100 year 



5 

 

5 

 

flood level.  He mentioned the slab homes on Willow Bend could be elevated, but it would be very 
difficult as they would need to be raised six feet.  He showed a slide and list of streets with 27 
repetitive loss properties.  He advised the number of these properties could increase after the recent 
severe storm event, but this would not be known until next year.  Mr. Kaspar then discussed hazard 
mitigation assistance grant programs, flood mitigation assistance, hazard management, pre-disaster 
mitigation, etc.  He added recent FEMA rule changes would make it more likely the City could obtain 
federal dollars to assist in buying out repetitive loss properties than with past applications.  Mr. 
Kaspar then showed the Castle Heights Neighborhood floodplain map, which showed many homes 
built in the floodplain.  He showed the differences in the 1992 and 2014 flood insurance rate maps.  
He advised Castle Heights previously had two drainage channels and now only drainage channel 
existed.  He advised a study to determine options for mitigation would cost about $75,000.  Mr. 
Kaspar then listed other options to help mitigate flooding, such as detention ponds.  He also advised 
there was a long history of flooding in the Willow Bend area and could flood with just over a two-
year storm event.  A previous study by Klotz Engineers listed alternatives as channel lowering with 
culvert replacement (estimated cost at the time of the study in 2004 was $4.4 million).  He added 
concrete lined channels needed to be wider and removing trees, etc., from the creek would help, but 
not significantly.  He added another option would be to build a detention pond by Henderson School.  
Mr. Kaspar summarized in many cases, buy out grants should be pursued.  He reminded Council that 
if federal dollars were used to buy out any properties, those properties must remain green space 
forever.  Mr. Kaspar also advised Council the drainage fee brought in about $800,000 to $900,000 per 
year, and that limited funds only allowed a certain amount of drainage maintenance and 
reconstruction a year.  He again advised the new NFIP rules should raise the City’s application score 
and he expected four properties could qualify for buyout.  Councilmember Owens left the meeting at 
2:10 p.m. during the discussion of this item and returned at 3:11 p.m. 

 
 Without objection, the meeting was recessed from 2:26 p.m. until 2:36 p.m., when the meeting was 

reconvened in open session in the same location. 
 
4. UPDATE REGARDING TRADITIONS AND ATLAS DEVELOPMENT 
 
 Mr. Spencer Clements, representing the Traditions Acquisition Partnership (TAP), discussed the 

success of their partnership with the City.  He announced TAP does its best to represent the City of 
Bryan and Texas A&M University (TAMU) in all they do.  He reminded Council that Traditions Golf 
Course was the home course for the TAMU men’s and women’s golf teams and had hosted NCAA 
regional tournaments and was in line for a national tournament.  He then explained the partnership of 
Bryan/Traditions, L.P., stating TAP was the general partner, so they decide what property to develop, 
what property to sell and for what price.  He further advised the City of Bryan set the ground rules of 
the partnership within the partnership agreement, including zoning and major project improvements.  
Mr. Clements pointed out that the City of Bryan does not develop real estate for a living, while TAP 
does.  He advised TAP representatives meet with City staff every other week, and that TAP had 
extended open invitations to all Councilmembers to visit Traditions at any time.  He added Bryan 
Commerce and Development, Inc., contributes raw land, major project improvements, irrigation 
water and its partnership interest in Parcel 35; TAP also has a partnership interest in Parcel 35.  He 
reminded Council that, per the partnership agreement and original negotiations, TAP had to build a 
club house, accomplish other agreement requirements and had five years to take down Parcel 35.  
TAP contributes neighborhood subdivision improvements, personnel, time, expertise, cash, 
development and ownership of the Traditions Club.  He also advised TAP does not get free water, 
since Bryan’s partnership splits are predicated on what Bryan contributes to the partnership; irrigation 
water is critical to this partnership and the value Bryan gets from its lot sales currently.  He pointed 
out high land values mean high partnership distributions to Bryan.  Mr. Clements advised Bryan 
profits by getting 44 percent of net sales proceeds from lot or parcel sales; TAP gets 56 percent.  He 



6 

 

6 

 

summarized Traditions has created regional economic growth, created jobs and added value to the 
permanent tax base (the land was previously zoned A-O).  Mr. Spencer concluded by advising TAP 
had every incentive to sale land for as much as possible, as they were actually a “manufacturing 
company” whose product was legally subdivided real estate lots, both commercial and residential.  He 
stressed TAP takes raw land and converts it to property with far more value. 

 
 Mr. Clements gave the history of the project, reminding Council the original partner sold over 200 

lots but never built a clubhouse; TAP replaced the original partner in 2009 and purchased the golf 
course note from the bank.  He reported TAP built a clubhouse over twice as large as required by the 
agreement.  He reported the club was stable with 900 members and a $2 million payroll; lot and home 
prices were up, new home construction had increased, and that Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone 
Ten was very healthy with $217 million in assessed property valuations.  He continued that the 
ATLAS development was underway.  He advised TAP had spent over $9 million in neighborhood 
infrastructure and their construction company had built over 60 new residences at over $20 million in 
construction costs.  Mr. Clements advised TAP had distributed over $3 million back to BCD for lot 
and parcel sales.  He then listed some of the companies that were in or coming to the ATLAS 
corporate campus:  FujiFilm, iBio, CHI St. Joseph, Nutrabolt, MatureWell, PARC at Traditions 
(senior living) and many others, adding the Fujifilm was one of only three biosecurity campuses in 
the country.  He reported Hawthorne at Traditions was expanding from 240 units to include another 
156 units, the Stella Hotel’s six levels were dried in and would be opening in the spring.  Mr. 
Clements showed the plan for the ATLAS development, showing the location of a lake with retail and 
restaurant development around it.  Mr. Clements pointed out this partnership had been the most 
successful public-private partnership of the City.  He also commended City staff for their dedication 
and hard work.  

 
5. DISCUSSION REGARDING CONSENT/STATUTORY AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE 

SECOND REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 7, 2016 
 
 Council briefly discussed agenda items 8 b, 9 g and 9 h of the consent/statutory agenda for the regular 

meeting of June 7, 2016.  No action was taken. 
 
6. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
  No Council committee reports were provided.  
 
7. ADJOURN  
 
 Without objection, the meeting was adjourned at 3:12 p.m. 
 
 
 
              

     City Secretary Mary Lynne Stratta                                   Mayor Jason P. Bienski 
 


